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Shawneetown Municipal Gas System Compliance Violations 

Introduction 

As authorized by Section 3 of the Illinois Gas Pipeline Safety Act (the "Act") [220 ILCS 

20/3], the Illinois Commerce Commission ("Commission") adopted, in 83 III. Adm. Code 590, 

federal safety standards in 49 CFR Sections 191.23, 192, 193, and 199 as minimum standards 

for the transportation of gas and for gas pipeline facilities. Shawneetown is a city in Illinois and 

the county seat of Gallatin County. On September 23, 2009, and April 15, 2010, the 

Commission's Pipeline Safety Staff ("Staff') conducted compliance audits of the Shawneetown 

Municipal Gas System ("Shawneetown") maintenance records and Shawneetown's anti-drug 

and alcohol testing program and records. Staffs review identified numerous probable 

violations ofthe CFR. 

Compliance Issues 

September 23. 2009 Record Audit 

49 CFR Section 192.615 (c) requires each operator to establish and maintain liaison with 

appropriate fire, police, and other public officials to share information regarding resources or 

entities that may respond to a natural gas emergency, acquaint those officials with the 

operator's ability to respond to an emergency, identify the types of gas pipeline emergencies 

that require notification, and plan for mutual assistance. Staff requested documentation 

required to verify compliance with 49 CFR Section 192.615 (c). Shawneetown could not provide 

Staff with such documentation. 

49 CFR Section 192.616(e) requires the operator's Public Awareness Program to include 

activities to advise affected school districts, businesses, and residents of the location of pipeline 
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facilities. Staff requested documentation required to verify compliance with 49 CFR Section 

192.616(e). Shawneetown could not provide Staff with such documentation. 

49 CFR Section 192.625(f) requires the operator to assure proper concentration of 

odorant in the natural gas system through periodic sampling of the combustible gases. 

Instrumentation is to be used to verify that the odorant is readily detectable to a person with a 

normal sense of smell. Staff requested documentation of odor intensity testing as required by 

49 CFR Section 192.625(f). Shawneetown could not provide Staff with such documentation. 

49 CFR Section 192.721(b) outlines operator requirements to periodically patrol mains 

in places or on structures where anticipated physical movement or external loading could cause 

failure or leakage. Such locations include mains attached to buildings, mains on bridges, or 

mains crossing under highways or railroads. Staff requested documentation necessary to verify 

compliance with 49 CFR Section 192. 721(b) relating to distribution system patrolling. 

Shawneetown could not provide Staff with such documentation. 

49 CFR Section 192.481(a) requires the operator to inspection each pipeline or portion 

of pipeline that is exposed to the atmosphere for evidence of atmospheric corrosion at least 

once every three calendar years with intervals not exceeding 39 months. Staff requested 

documentation of atmospheric corrosion control monitoring as required by 49 CFR Section 

192.481(a). Shawneetown could not provide Staff with such documentation. 

83 III. Adm. Code 520.10(b) requires operators to develop and follow training 

procedures which will assure that its field employees engaged in construction, operation, 

inspection and maintenance ofthe gas system are properly trained. Staff requested the 

operators' Training Program required by Section 520.10(b). Shawneetown could not provide 

Staff with a training program. 

Notification 

On October 2, 2009, the Manager of the Pipeline Safety Program sent a letter outlining 

each Notice of Probable Violation (NOPV") identified during the September 23,2009 Record 

Audit to the Honorable Terry Williams, Mayor - City of Shawneetown. The letter advised that 

the City of Shawneetown could submit to the Pipeline Safety Program Office, in writing, 

evidence refuting the probable violations referenced in the NOPV or submit a plan outlining 

actions to be taken to correct each violation identified in the NOPV, including a schedule and 

the date when compliance was anticipated. The letter required a response by November 2, 

2009. 

On November 4, 2009, Staff contacted the Shawneetown City Hall and advised that a 

response to the October 2,2009 letter had not been received. On November 17, 2009, Staff 
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received a FAX Transmittal from Jim Rigsby of Shawneetown Municipal Gas System. The 

transmittal was intended to address the NOPV issues outlined in the October 2, 2009 letter. 

The FAX Transmittal indicated that the operator: 

• Had received a new Operator Qualification Plan from a contracted consultant: 

• Had a consultant was working on a new Operation and Maintenance Plan for 
Shawneetown; 

• Had contacted a drug testing agent regarding employee inclusion in an anti-drug 
testing pool and was scheduling a time for the Shawneetown covered employees 
to be anti-drug tested: 

• Had started working on a Public Awareness announcement to be published in 
local newspapers; and 

• Had completed the two patrols of the gas system to meet code requirements. 

April 15. 2010 Record Audit 

Staff requested records and performed a facility inspection to determine if 49 CFR 

Section 199.113(b), Employee Assistance Program, requirements had been met. Section 

199.113(b) requires education under each Employee Assistance Program to include, at a 

minimum, display and distribution of informational material, display and distribution of a 

community hot-line telephone number for employee assistance, and display and distribution of 

the employer's policy regarding the use of prohibited drugs. Shawneetown could not provide 

Staff with documentation relating to those activities and Staff could not locate displayed 

materials during the April 15, 2010, inspection. 

49 CFR Section 199.113(c) requires training under each Employee Assistance Program 

for supervisory personnel who will determine whether an employee must be drug tested based 

on reasonable cause. The training must include one 60-minute period of training on the 

specific, contemporaneous physical, behavioral and performance indicators of probable drug 

use. Shawneetown could not provide Staff with documentation of training of supervisory 

personnel as required by 49 CFR Sections 199.113(c), 199.117(a)(4), 199.241, and 

199.227( c)(6)(iii). 

49 CFR Section 199.117(a)(4) requires that records confirming that supervisors and 

employees have been trained as required by this part must be kept for a minimum of 3 years. 

The training for employees must include notice ofthe availability of and Employee Assistance 

Program regarding drug use and the operators' policy regarding the use of prohibited drugs. 

The training for supervisors must also include methods to determine if an employee should be 
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tested based on reasonable cause. Shawneetown could not provide Staff with documentation 

regarding training of supervisory personnel required by Section 199.117(a)(4). 

Staff requested documentation to determine compliance with 49 CFR Section 199.241, 

Training for Supervisors. This Section requires each operator to ensure that persons designated 

to determine whether reasonable suspicion exists to require a covered employee to undergo 

alcohol testing under Section 199.225(b) receive at least 60 minutes of training on physical, 

behavioral, speech, and performance indicators of probable alcohol misuse. 49 CFR Section 

199.227(c)(6)(iii) requires documentation of training provided to supervisors for the purpose of 

qualifying the supervisors to make a determination concerning the need for alcohol testing 

based on reasonable suspicion. Shawneetown could not provide Staff with documentation 

regarding provided for required training of supervisors. 

Staff requested documentation required to determine compliance with 49 CFR Section 

199.119(d), Reporting of anti-drug testing results. This Section allows an employer to use a 

service agent to perform random selection for drug testing of operator employees that may be 

part of a larger random testing pool of covered employees. However, the operator must 

ensure that the service agent used is testing at the appropriate percentage established for the 

industry and that covered employees are in a random testing pool. Shawneetown could not 

provide Staff with documentation that covered employees were included in the drug testing 

pool or to confirm the service agent performing random selections regarding anti-drug testing 

of covered employees for Shawneetown is testing at the appropriate percentage rate as 

established by Section 199.105(c). 

Staff requested documentation to determine compliance with 49 CFR Section 

192.285(a) and (b), Plastic pipe, Qualifying Persons to Make Joints. This Section states that no 

person may make a plastic pipe joint unless that person has been qualified under the applicable 

joining procedure and had a specimen joint tested in accordance with one of the methods listed 

under Section 192.283. Section 192.287, Plastic pipe, Inspection of Joints, requires the 

operator to be qualified by appropriate training or experience in evaluation of the acceptability 

of plastic pipe joints made under the applicable joining procedure. Shawneetown could not 

provide Staff with documentation to confirm that operator personnel had been qualified to 

make plastic fusion joints under the applicable procedure as required by 49 CFR Section 

192.285. Shawneetown also could not provide Staff with documentation confirming that 

operator personnel had been qualified by appropriate training or experience in the evaluation 

of acceptability of plastic joints as required by 49 CFR Section 192.287. 

Staff reviewed odor detection report records. The records track the reports of natural 

gas odors received by the operator, the time of a report and the response time. It was noted 

that an odor report call was received by Shawneetown at 8:00 am on September 1, 2009. The 
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operator did not respond to the report until 10:00 am that day. 49 CFR Section 192.61S(a) 

requires each operator to establish written procedures to minimize the hazard resulting from a 

gas pipeline emergency. At a minimum, the procedure must provide for prompt and effective 

response to a notice of each type of emergency including gas detected inside or near a building, 

which is clearly identified in the CFR as an emergency response situation. Prompt response is 

defined as responding without delay. Shawneetown could not provide Staff with 

documentation of any reason for the delayed response to the odor notification. 

Staff requested documentation to verify compliance with Section 192.747(a) regarding 

distribution system valve maintenance. The Section requires that each valve that may be 

necessary for the safe operation of the distribution system be checked and serviced at intervals 

not exceeding 15 months, but at least once each calendar year. Shawneetown could not 

provide Staff with documentation demonstrating that distribution system valves were checked 

and serviced as required in 2009. 

Staff requested records necessary to determine compliance with 49 CFR Section 

192.807(b) regarding operator qualification record keeping. Records supporting an individual's 

current qualification shall be maintained while the individual is performing covered tasks. 

Records of prior qualification and records of individuals no longer performing covered tasks 

must be retained for a period of five years. Covered tasks include any task that is performed on 

a pipeline facility, is an operation or maintenance task, is performed as a requirement of Part 

192, and affects the operation or integrity of the pipeline. Shawneetown could not provide 

Staff with documentation supporting current or previous employee individuals performing 

covered tasks. 

Notification 

On April 23, 2010, a letter identifying each Notice of Probable Violation ("NOPV") 

identified during the April 15, 2010 Record Audit was sent by the Pipeline Safety Program 

Manager to the Honorable Terry Williams, Mayor - City of Shawneetown. The letter advised 

that the City of Shawneetown should submit to the Pipeline Safety Office, in writing, evidence 

refuting the probable violations referenced in the NOPVs or submit a plan of action outlining 

actions to be taken to correct each issue of the violations, including a schedule and the date 

when compliance was anticipated. The letter required a response by May 24, 2010. A response 

was not received by the required date. On June 1, 2010, Staff telephoned Shawneetown and 

advised the Shawneetown City Clerk that a NOPV letter had been sent to the Mayor that 

required response by May 24, 2010. Staff advised that the response should be faxed to the 

Pipeline Safety office by June 4, 2010. No response has been received. 

Conclusion 
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Shawneetown's failure to comply with, and to maintain records to demonstrate 

compliance, with the numerous Sections of the CFR noted above and its failure to respond to 

the two NOPV letters constitutes a long-term course of intentional disregard of the standards 

and processes that each operator under the jurisdiction of the Illinois Commerce Commission 

must meet to maintain compliance with required federal standards. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends that a Citation Order be issued to initiate a proceeding to determine 

whether Shawneetown has failed to comply with 49 CFR Sections: 192.285(a), 192.481(a), 

192.615(a), 192.615(c), 192.616(e), 192.625(f), 192.747(a), 192.807(b), 199.113(b), 199.113(c), 

199.117(a), 199.119(d) and 199.241 and whether civil penalties should be assessed as allowed 

by Section 7 of the Illinois Gas pipeline Safety Act (220 ILCS20/7). 

Prepared By: 

Darin R. Burk 

Pipeline Safety Program Manager 

Energy Division 
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;pproved; 

Harry Stoller, Director 

Energy Division 
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